
PLANNING COMMISSION 
WORK SESSION AGENDA 
APRIL 14, 2015 - 3:00 PM 
Fourth Floor Exhibit Hall 

Rouss City Hall 

1. Review agenda for April 21, 2015 regular meeting (Youmans)

2. Discussion of Zoning Text Amendment pertaining to ground-floor residential conditional use in
the Highway Commercial (B-2) District (Grisdale)

3. Committee reports

4. Status of projects pending Council approval (Youmans)

5. Announcements

0



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REVISED AGENDA 

April 21, 2015 - 3:00 PM 
Council Chambers - Rouss City Hall 

1. POINTS OF ORDER

A.   Roll Call 
B.   Certification of Closed Session for March 17, 2015 meeting- Fieo 
C.   Approval of Minutes 
D.   Correspondence 
E.   Citizen Comments 
F.   Report of Frederick Co Planning Commission Liaison 

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS – New Business

A. SP-15-135   Request of Tim Painter of Painter Lewis, on behalf of 1720 Valley Avenue LLC, for 
site improvements including off-street parking and building renovations at 1720 Valley Avenue 
(Map Number 231-04-K-8-A) zoned  Highway Commercial (B-2) District. (Youmans) 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS – Continued

4. NEW BUSINESS
A. CE-15-198   Corridor Enhancement Certificate of Appropriateness- 826 Berryville Ave.-

Commercial Remodel- (Youmans) 

B. FY 2015-2019 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Presentation- (Eisenach) 

5. OLD BUSINESS

6. OTHER BUSINESS
A. Minor Subdivision Report (Crump): 

1. MS-15-105 & MS-15-182  Omps Drive Boundary Line Adjustment 
2. MS-15-178   Braddock Partnership   Boundary Line Adjustment/Lot Consolidation 
3. MS-15-195   Duncan Brother Tires    Boundary Line Adjustment 
4. Shenandoah University/ Millwood Ave Plats

B. Administrative Approval(s)  (Crump): 
1. Site Plan Report

(a) SP-15-180  Minor Revision-  301 E. Cork Street-  Winchester City Public Schools

7. ADJOURN

MS-14-211 MS-15-218 MS-14-246 MS-15-306 MS-15-84 

MS-15-85 MS-15-86 MS-15-87 MS-15-88 MS-15-89 

1



PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

The Winchester Planning Commission held its regular meeting on Tuesday, February 17, 2015, at 3:00 
p.m. in the Fourth Floor Exhibit Hall, Rouss City Hall, 15 N. Cameron Street, Winchester, Virginia. 

CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Slaughter called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 
PRESENT: Chairman Slaughter, Vice Chairman Loring, Commissioner Shickle, 

Commissioner Wolfe, Commissioner Tagnesi, Commissioner Fieo 
ABSENT: None 
EX-OFICIO: City Manager Freeman 
STAFF: Timothy Youmans, Aaron Grisdale, Josh Crump, Catherine Clayton 
VISITORS: Patrick Sowers, Gregory Jones, Greg Frye, Ronald Putnam, Chad Lee, 

Jeannie Will, Thomas Jordan, Bill Stern, Rick Miller, Michael 
Grabowski\ 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Chairman Slaughter called for corrections or additions to the minutes of January 20, 2015.  Hearing none, 
he called for a motion.  Commissioner Shickle moved to approve the minutes as submitted.  
Commissioner Tagnesi seconded the motion.  Voice vote was taken and the motion passed 6-0. 

CORRESPONDENCE:

Mr. Youmans advised that beginning with page 25 in the packet, staff has included the driveway exhibit 
as well as copies of correspondence from citizens expressing comments concerning the rezoning request 
for Linden Drive.  Additionally, he advised that staff has included a third possible motion on page 15 for 
the rezoning. 

CITIZEN COMMENTS:

None. 

REPORT OF THE FREDERICK COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON:

Commissioner Kenney advised that they adopted new By-Laws; discussed Capital Improvement plan; a 
rezoning request to change from B1 to B2; introduction of farm breweries; discussion on R4 permitted 
uses; use of alternative pavers; and their February 21, 2015, retreat. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

TA-14-770  AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECOTION 18-8-7 OF THE 
WINCHESTER ZONING ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO FREESTANDING AND BUILDING 
MOUNTED SIGNS PERMITTED IN THE RO-1 DISTRICT.  (Mr. Grisdale) 

Mr. Grisdale presented the staff report stating that this is a privately sponsored text amendment to modify 
signage opportunities for properties in the Residential Office (RO-1) district.  The applicant is proposing 
to increase the sign allowances for properties that obtained a conditional use permit for building footprint 
in the Corridor Enhancement (CE) district (Section 14.2-6.10).  The applicant desires that allowances be 
provided to enable a larger amount of proportionate signage for larger structures.  The existing CE 
standards included in Article 14.2 will still apply for such properties within the zoning overlay, including 
a prohibition on internally illuminated signage and requirements that the new freestanding signage be a 
monument style and be of a design consistent with the main building’s design.  He concluded by stating 

2



that staff believes it is good planning practice and that the change is consistent with the intent of the RO-1 
district and supports this request. 

Chairman Slaughter called for questions from the Commission. 

Vice Chairman Loring asked about the limitation of the two size options.  Mr. Grisdale said that an 
applicant can have up to the 50 square feet of signage of building mounted signage.  He also said that it 
can be multiple signs up to the aggregate of 50 square feet but in terms of freestanding signs, it would just 
be one of the two options.  Chairman Slaughter asked if this is by-right to which Mr. Grisdale responded 
yes, it is by-right for those having gone through the conditional use permit process with Planning 
Commission and City Council.  Additionally, it would go through the Corridor Enhancement certificate 
of appropriateness and sign permit application review processes. 

Chairman Slaughter Opened the Public Hearing

Chairman Slaughter Closed the Public Hearing

Chairman Slaughter called for discussion from the Commission.  Hearing none, he called for a motion. 

Commissioner Tagnesi moved to forward TA-14-770 to City Council with a favorable recommendation 
because the amendment, as proposed, presents good planning practice by providing for appropriate and 
proportional signage options for larger buildings in the Residential Office district.  Commissioner Wolfe 
seconded the motion.  Voice vote was taken and the motion passed 6-0. 

RZ-15-07  AN ORDINANCE TO REZONE 6.29 ACRES OF LAND AT 304 THROUGH 332 LINDEN 
DRIVE (Map Number 130-6- -16 to Map Number 130-6- -23) AND 352 THROUGH 470 LINDEN 
DRIVE (Map Number 130-6- -1 to Map Number 130-6- -11) FROM LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 
(LR) DISTRICT ZONING TO HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (HR) DISTRICT ZONING.  (Mr.

Youmans)

Mr. Youmans presented the staff report stating that the request would conditionally rezone the land from 
LR to HR which would either allow the previously approved 19 single-family detached dwellings to be 
built on the existing 19 vacant lots or it would allow up to 34 townhouse dwellings and 2 single family 
detached dwellings to be built as outlined in the statement of justification from the applicant.  The 
properties are split into two separate land bays with the northernmost 11 lots in land bay 1 being single 
family lots and the southernmost 11 lots would be 1 single family detached and 10 age-restricted units.  
Land bay 2 consists of 8 single family lots with 1 lot being limited to single family detached use and the 
remaining 7 lots developed either as 7 single family detached units or subdivided further to allow up to 14 
townhouse units.  The applicant has proffered that the site development shall be limited to a maximum of 
2 single family detached units and 34 townhouse units with shared driveways to the townhouse units.  No 
traffic or fiscal impact analysis was requested as the ordinance does not specifically provide for this in 
conjunction with a non-PUD rezoning such as this one.  As in the past, there are concerns associated with 
erosion and stormwater runoff impacting the homes to the rear of these lots.  Extensive erosion control 
and stormwater management requirements were engineered to minimize any potential impacts and these 
provisions would stay in place unless specifically approved for change by the City Engineer.  Mr. 
Youmans also said that there has been some concern and comment as it relates to age-restricted housing.  
He said that the City can legally do it because it is in the proffer and if accepted by the City, it becomes 
law.  He concluded by stating that staff has distributed copies of letters from concerned residents and that 
staff included a third possible motion for the Commission to consider. 

Chairman Slaughter called for questions from the Commission. 

3



 

Vice Chairman Loring asked how to enforce the age-restriction on the housing.  Mr. Grisdale said that 
essentially when the City receives a complaint, an inspector will go out to verify, speak with the owner, 
and check the code and then follow the procedures as warranted.  Commissioner Wolfe said that it seems 
hard and asked how staff would handle if the house is sold or willed to someone to which Mr. Grisdale 
said that occupancy violations are more difficult to enforce but not impossible.  Chairman Slaughter asked 
if there would be restrictions on the deed to which Mr. Youmans said yes there will be. 

Commissioner Tagnesi asked if this request fails, is it the intention of the applicant to build the single 
family dwellings to which Mr. Youmans said that this a by-right development and that he would defer to 
the applicant for response. 

Vice Chairman Loring said that he has a concern about the shared driveways and parking.  Mr. Youmans 
said that they can be problematic if someone is parked in the driveway but 30 feet is adequate if the 
driveway is not obstructed.  Vice Chairman Loring asked if street parking is permitted.  Mr. Youmans 
said that it is permitted as long as the street is not posted. 

Chairman Slaughter Opened the Public Hearing 

Patrick Sowers, Pennoni Associates, representative of the applicant, said that they have heard the 
concerns of the residents and advised that they are requesting to have the application tabled for 60 days to 
allow time to fully prepare a complete response with a revised proffer statement. 

Chairman Slaughter asked Mr. Sowers if they plan to have a public comment session during the 60 days if 
the Commission tables the request to which Mr. Sowers said yes. 

Gregory Jones, 340 Linden Drive, expressed his concerns and said that the residents of the area do not 
want townhouses and that most purchased their homes with the understanding that there would be single 
family dwellings.  He also commented that shared driveways are not suited in the neighborhood and that 
there is no homeowners association to police the age-restriction on the properties in question and that it 
should not be the responsibility of the other residents. 

Greg Frye, 111 W. North Avenue, said that he has 2 investment properties on George Street and that he 
has had to spend thousands of dollars because of water issues coming from the properties on Linden 
Drive.  He further said that this is spot zoning and it should not be allowed. 

Ronald Putnam, 319 George Street, expressed concern about the lack of proper drainage and water issues.  
He further added that there should only be single family detached dwellings permitted and that the builder 
should be required to install a French drain system to offset the drainage and water problems that already 
exist. 

Chad Lee, 1624 Whittier Avenue, stated that townhouses will bring down the property value of his home 
and others in the neighborhood and he said that only single family homes should be allowed. 

Jeannie Will, 1633 Whittier Avenue, expressed concern about the age-restriction and the enforcement of 
it.  Mr. Youmans said that the restriction is on the occupancy and not the ownership.  Ms. Will then 
expressed concern over the newspaper article that said the developer will build inferior homes if they are 
forced to only build single family dwellings. 

Thomas Jordan, 348 Linden Drive, said that he objects to the rezoning and that there will be an increase 
in traffic and crowding of vehicles on the street.  He then said that they need to widen Linden Drive if 
they are going to allow on-street parking. 

4



Bill Stern, 1637 Whittier Avenue, stated that the townhouse units will devalue his property and that he is 
concerned about the water runoff.  He concluded by saying that the neighborhood needs to stay the way it 
is now. 

Rick Miller, 336 Linden Drive, stated that it needs to stay single family dwellings but that he would like 
to see the development complete.  He said that townhouses will devalue the ambiance of the 
neighborhood. 

Michael Grabowski, partner in the development, spoke about smaller footprint dwellings and that with the 
townhouse proposal, stormwater issues will have to be addressed whereas with the 19 single family 
dwellings, the developer does not have to deal with stormwater management.  He also said that they 
intend to sell top-end homes/units. 

Chairman Slaughter stated that the Commission will keep the Public Hearing open if the Commission 
tables the applicant’s request.  He then explained the role of the Planning Commission to the public. 

Chairman Slaughter then called for discussion from the Commission. 

Commissioner Wolfe said that there are 2 or 3 to-be-built homes already advertised for sale to which Mr. 
Grabowski said that they are trying to gauge the market.  Commissioner Tagnesi commented on the 
average price of houses on George Street.  Commissioner Fieo stated that he is concerned about the 
shared driveways and the increase of on-street parking causing safety issues.  Commissioner Shickle said 
that she has no comment.  Vice Chairman Loring expressed concern about the management of age-
restricted housing and about the shared driveways. 

Mr. Youmans said that there have been some concerns about water pressure to which Ms. Henshaw, City 
Engineer, stated that there should not be a problem with water pressure.  Chairman Slaughter asked Ms. 
Henshaw about stormwater issues.  Ms. Henshaw stated that there are new stormwater standards in place 
and that the applicant cannot let any water runoff from the lots for multi-family units. 

Commissioner Shickle then asked if staff will advise the Planning Commission of any community 
meetings.  Mr. Youmans advised that only two Commissioners could attend.  Commissioner Shickle said 
that possibly staff could attend and report back to the Commission.  Chairman Slaughter asked the 
applicant to notify staff of any community meetings to which Mr. Sowers said that he would certainly do 
that. 

Chairman Slaughter then said that it is helpful when issues are addressed in proffers as it makes it clearer 
for the Commission. 

Hearing no other discussion, Chairman Slaughter called for a motion. 

Commissioner Fieo moved to table RZ-15-07 until the April 21, 2015, regular meeting to allow adequate 
time for the applicant to address the comments and concerns that City staff identifies and to allow staff to 
fully review the revised documents and exhibits.  Vice Chairman Loring seconded the motion.  Voice vote 
was taken and the motion passed 6-0. 

OTHER BUSINESS: 

Chairman Slaughter stated that if anyone has topics for the retreat, to please forward them to staff. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

With no further business before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at 4:17 p.m. 

5



PLANNING COMMISSION 

RETREAT MINUTES 
March 17, 2015 - 3:00 PM 

Council Chambers - Rouss City Hall 

CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Slaughter called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 
PRESENT: Chairman Slaughter, Vice Chairman Loring, Commissioner Shickle, 

Commissioner Smith, Commissioner Wolfe, Commissioner Fieo 
ABSENT: Commissioner Tagnesi 
FREDERICK CO. LIAISON: Commissioner Kenney 

STAFF: Timothy Youmans, Aaron Grisdale, Josh Crump, Erick Moore, Anthony 
Williams 

VISITORS: None 

Citizen Comments: 
None. 

Report of the Frederick County Planning Commission Liaison: 

Commissioner Kenney gave an update on Frederick County Planning Commission business and annual 
retreat.  

Retreat Topics: 

Discussion on parking provisions for intensified uses in the 50% and 100% parking exemption areas 
downtown was discussed between commissioners and staff.  

Administrative Approval(s): 

Site Plan Report: 
SP-15-125   40 West Jubal Early Drive– Minor Revision 

Commissioners approved SP-15-125 for administrative approval. 

Closed Session- Consultation with Legal Counsel: 

MOTION TO CONVENE IN EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO §2.2- 3711(A)(7) OF THE 
CODE OF VIRGINIA FOR THE PURPOSE OF RECEIVING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE CITY 
ATTORNEY AND LEGAL CONSULTATION REGARDING THE SUBJECT OF SPECIFIC LEGAL 
MATTERS REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF LEGAL ADVICE BY THE CITY ATTORNEY AND 
MATTERS OF ACTUAL OR PROBABLE LITIGATION.  

Vice-Chairman Loring moved to convene into executive session at 4:00 p.m. The motion was seconded 
by Commissioner Fieo then unanimously approved by voice-vote. At 5:04 p.m. Commissioner Fieo left 
the meeting. Vice-Chairman Loring moved to reconvene in open session at 5:19 p.m. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Shickle then unanimously approved by voice-vote. Upon returning, each 
member certified that only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements of 
the Virginia Freedom of Information Act were discussed during the closed meeting, and that only those 
public business matters identified in the motion which convened the closed meeting were heard, 
discussed, or considered during the closed meeting.  
A roll call vote was taken, the ayes and nays being recorded as shown below:  

Meeting Adjourn at 5:20pm 

Member Vote 
Chairman Slaughter Aye 
Vice Chairman Loring Aye 
Commissioner Smith Aye 
Commissioner Shickle Aye 
Commissioner Wolfe Aye 
Commissioner Fieo Absent 

6



Planning Commission   Item 2A 
April 21, 2015 

SP-15-135   Request of Tim Painter of Painter Lewis, on behalf of 1720 Valley Avenue LLC, for site 
improvements including off-street parking and building renovations at 1720 Valley Avenue (Map 
Number 231-04-K-8-A) zoned  Highway Commercial (B-2) District. 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

REQUEST DESCRIPTION 
The request is to amend the 2008 site plan with revisions to the proposed use, landscaping, buffering, 
parking, and street improvements along Roberts Street and Burton Avenue called for in the site layout 
plan. The plan calls for retaining all of the building, decreasing the amount of parking, and increasing the 
amount of green area. 

AREA DESCRIPTION 
The site has its main frontage of about 220 
feet along Valley Ave, but it actually fronts on 
three public streets. It adjoins Burton Avenue 
for 193 feet to the north, a poorly defined 
public street within a 40-foot right of way 
between the Coca-Cola property and the 
adjoining paint store/apartment building to 
the north. The site also extends 237 feet 
along Roberts Street to the east. 

The adjoining vacant property to the south at 
1726 Valley Ave is zoned B-2 with Corridor 
Enhancement (CE) District overlay. A used car 
lot is situated further to the south at the 
corner of Valley Ave and Bellview Ave.  

All of the other land bordering the tract to the south is zoned Medium Density Residential (MR). Use of 
the 5 MR lots is single-family detached. Land across Roberts St to the east is zoned High Density 
Residential (HR) and contains apartment use and single-family use. Land to the north across Burton Ave 
is zoned B-2 (CE) and contains mixed use consistent with what is proposed for the subject property. 
Land across Valley Ave to the west is zoned MR and contains single-family homes and a couple of 
apartments. 

STAFF COMMENTS  
Most of the site is situated within the Valley Avenue Corridor Enhancement (CE) District. This includes all 
of the building except for the rear (east) elevation of the building situated behind the two-story portion 
of the structure. The site was the subject of a 2014 rezoning that amended a prior rezoning establishing 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) overlay zoning on the 1.3-acre site. Both rezonings allowed for mixed 
use redevelopment- the first one offering two alternative combinations of retail and up to 18 
apartments and the latter one added a third option allowing up to 23 apartments in addition to 5,103 
square feet of retail use. The site plan depicts the third option calling for 23 apartments. 

7



This site plan amends one that was approved in 2008 that predates the PUD rezonings allowing 
residential use. It called for a combination or medical and general office use and the removal or the 
existing warehouse space in the southeast part of the site. A larger parking lot was proposed in the rear 
(east) area.  No aspect of that commercial-only site plan was ever implemented. 

Updated site plan drawings were prepared to accompany the two PUD rezonings. A layout depicting a 
more intensive parking plan than the one now being proposed included proposed parallel parking 
spaces along both Roberts Street and Burton Street. Now that there is a smaller amount of commercial 
space and a greater number of one-bedroom apartments, there is not as much parking required per the 
Zoning Ordinance. The plan depicts 47 spaces where the ordinance otherwise requires a minimum of 40 
spaces. The 23 apartments require 23 spaces and the 5,103 square feet of commercial space requires 17 
spaces. A prior approved variance from the BZA for relief of off-street parking and the usage of on-street 
parallel parking toward meeting the minimum requirement is no longer applicable. There would still be 
a few parking spaces and a one-way drive along the Valley Ave frontage. Six additional spaces are 
situated along the south side of the building near the Valley Ave frontage. The remaining spaces are 
located to the rear (east) of the site where the main entrances to the apartments are located. 

In terms of green area, the current plan reintroduces some green area to the Valley Avenue frontage 
where Coca-Cola had added paved parking years ago. The plan also introduces considerable amounts of 
green area to the rear (east) part of the site, including some perimeter green area around the building as 
well as green area along the Roberts Street and Burton Avenue frontages. The elimination of the 
previously proposed parallel parking stalls along Burton and Roberts also increases the total amount of 
pervious green area, helping with Stormwater management along those public streets. The applicant is 
also proposing some underground Stormwater management improvements including storm sewers 
along both Burton Ave and Roberts St. The existing retaining wall along Roberts St would remain in 
place. There would be a small amount of pavement widening proposed along both of those streets. Curb 
and gutter is proposed along Burton St, but most of Roberts Street would not have curb and gutter. 

City staff supports the modified proposed frontage improvement plan and believes that the site plan 
otherwise is generally consistent with the Development Plan and proffers approved as part of the most 
recent conditional rezoning. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the Site Plan. A favorable motion could read: 
MOVE, that the Commission approve SP-15-135, subject to staff review and approval. 

8



SP-15-1359



SP-15-13510



SP-15-13514


	April 2015 PC Packet
	Coke Plant - Siteplan (SUBMITTAL 03.05.15)



